
Please ask for Christine Morgan: Telephone 01775 764454 
e-mail: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Committee - PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL

Date & Time - Tuesday, 5 September 2017 at 6.30 pm

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding

Membership of the Performance Monitoring Panel:

Councillors: B Alcock (Chairman), G R Aley, J R Astill, M D Booth (Vice-Chairman), 
C J T H Brewis, T A Carter, R Clark, G K Dark, P C Foyster, R Grocock, J L King, 
J D McLean, A M Newton, M D Seymour and A C Tennant

Substitute members on the Performance Monitoring Panel may be appointed only 
from members who are not on the Cabinet.  Substitutions apply for individual 
meetings only. 

Quorum: 5

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn their mobile telephones to 

silent mode

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE

Date:   25 August 2017



A G E N D A

1 Apologies for absence. 

2 Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the Performance 
Monitoring Panel meeting held on 4 July 2017 (copy enclosed).

(Pages 
1 - 4)

3 Declaration of Interests - Where a Councillor has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest the Councillor must declare the interest to the 
meeting and leave the room without participating in any discussion or 
making a statement on the item, except where a councillor is permitted 
to remain as a result of a grant of dispensation.

4 Questions asked under Standing Order 6 

5 Tracking of Recommendations - To consider responses of the Cabinet 
to reports of the Panel.

a)  Response of the Cabinet to the Final Report of the Re-Letting of 
Void Properties Task Group - (report enclosed).

(Pages 
5 - 8)

6 Items referred from the Policy Development Panel. 

7 Key Decision Plan - To note the current Key Decision Plan (copy 
enclosed).

(Pages 
9 - 12)

8 Contracts - Presentation by the Interim Corporate Contracts and 
Procurement Manager, Hilary Gillies, on the establishment of a new 
Contracts Team, and to update members on the team’s objectives and 
its approach to contract information, contracts register and opportunities 
for efficiency.

9 Quarter 1 2017-18 Performance Overview Report - To provide an 
update on Council performance for the period 1 April 2017 to 30 June 
2017 (report of the Executive Director Strategy and Governance 
enclosed).

(Pages 
13 - 34)

10 Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme - To set out the Work 
Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel (report of the 
Executive Manager Governance enclosed).

(Pages 
35 - 56)

11 Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent - 

NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL held in the 
Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 4 July 2017 at 
6.30 pm.

PRESENT

B Alcock (Chairman)
M D Booth (Vice-Chairman)

G R Aley
J R Astill
T A Carter
G K Dark

P C Foyster
R Grocock
J D McLean
A M Newton

M D Seymour
A C Tennant

In Attendance:  The Executive Director Commercialisation and the Democratic 
Services Officer.

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors C J T H Brewis, 
R Clark and J L King.

Action By
1 MINUTES 

Councillors considered the minutes of the meeting of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel held on 16 May 2017.  With 
reference to attendance, Councillor Grocock advised that he had 
given his apologies for the meeting but these had not been noted 
in the minutes.

AGREED:

That, subject to the amendment detailed above,  the minutes of 
the Performance Monitoring Panel meeting held on 16 May 2017 
be signed by the Chairman as a correct record.  

CM 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

There were no declarations of interest. 

3 QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 6 

There were no questions asked under Standing Order 6 

4 TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

There were no responses of the Cabinet to consider. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



- 2 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 4 
July 2017

5 ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL. 

There were no items referred from the Policy Development Panel. 

6 KEY DECISION PLAN 

Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan issued on 26 
June 2017.

AGREED:

That the Key Decision Plan issued on 26 June 2017 be noted. 

7 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager 
Governance, which set out the Work Programme of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel.  The Work Programme consisted 
of two separate sections, the first setting out the dates of the 
future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 
consideration, and the second setting out the Task Groups that 
had been identified by the Panel.

Alongside consideration of this item, the Panel was asked to 
consider its Work Programme, how it could be progressed, and 
issues the Panel or its Task Groups should be involved in 
scrutinising.  The Executive Director Commercialisation was in 
attendance to facilitate the discussion.  She commented that 
Panel members should consider existing items on the Work 
Programme alongside new items.  These could then be 
incorporated by testing them against the Corporate Priorities and 
prioritising them.  For those issues that passed the test, officers 
would bring a report back to the Panel providing facts which 
would then enable members to decide whether a Task Group was 
required to look into the issue further.  It was agreed that this 
approach would be useful however, where there were issues that 
required more immediate action, there needed to be an ability to 
accelerate the process, and this was accepted.

The following issues for consideration were raised by Panel 
members:

 CCTV – To address any potential issues outstanding following 
the work of the Effectiveness of CCTV Task Group.

 Emergency response – was the Authority’s Emergency Plan 
robust?

 Future leisure provision.

Page 2



- 3 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 4 
July 2017

 Performance of the Housing Allocations Policy.
 Effectiveness of the Council’s Anti Social Behaviour Policy.
 Section 106 monies – how were these spent?
 How was the Authority addressing fly tipping within the 

District?
 How was economic development undertaken and promoted by 

the Authority?
 How effectively was the Authority managing commercial 

opportunities?
 Resourcing of the Scrutiny function.
 Cost of running the South Holland Centre.
 Lincolnshire County Council – issues around the recent 

decision to reduce the number of grass cuts within the County, 
and the effect this has had on the District.

 Effectiveness of Lincolnshire County Council’s policy to fill pot 
holes.

 Performance management of the Streetscene.
 Performance of enforcement and how this will be undertaken 

as part of the Authority-wide reorganisation.
 Effect of recent eligibility changes to the Local Council Tax 

Support Scheme. 
 Effectiveness of members that are both District and County 

Councillors.
 Were the financial savings predicted within the Authority being 

delivered? 

It was agreed that, prior to the next Panel meeting, officers would 
identify which issues could be dealt with by further information 
and reports, and which issues needed to be looked at in more 
detail (although a Task Group may not be needed in each case).  
This information would be presented to the Panel in order that it 
may prioritise the issues to form a Work Programme.  Members 
also requested that a summary of issues discussed be circulated 
to them following the meeting.

AGREED:

a) That both sections of the Panel’s Work Programme, as set out 
in the report of the Executive Manager Governance, be noted;

b) That a summary of issues discussed at this meeting be 
circulated to Panel members;

c) That prior to the next meeting of the Panel, officers consider 
the issues raised by members as potential Work Programme 
items, and identify which could be dealt with by further 
information and reports, and which needed to be looked at in 

CM 
(Morgan) 

CM 
(Marshall)

Page 3



- 4 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 4 
July 2017

more detail; and

d) That the information collated by officers at (c) above be 
presented to the next meeting of the Panel, with a view to 
prioritising issues that required deeper investigation, and that 
a Work Programme for the Panel be drawn together from this 
information. 

CM
(Marshall) 

8 ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT 

There were no urgent items. 

(The meeting ended at 8.05 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 4



PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - RECOMMENDATION TRACKING

Title of Report: Re-Letting of Void Properties Task Group Final Report

Date of Panel: 16 May 2017

Recommendations made to: Cabinet

Date: 25 July 2017

Relevant Portfolio: Portfolio Holder – Housing and Health

Lead Officer: Environmental Services Manager

Recommendations Cabinet Response Officer(s) 
responsible 
for action

Progress 
report back 
to Panel

The Task Group made the following 
recommendations (note, items deleted and 
added in red at (c) and (d) below reflect 
changes made following discussion by the 
PMP, and amendments then made to the 
version reported to Cabinet:

a) That the voids process is amalgamated 
into one voids team and the process 
along with a number of actions within this 
are refined and/or removed. This is for all 
properties within the housing stick 
(Sheltered or General needs housing). 
This may rely upon digital applications, 
key safes at properties to allow quicker 

Consideration was given to the final report of the Re-Letting of 
Void Properties Task Group containing recommendations which 
had been approved by the Performance Monitoring Panel.

The Chairman of the Task Group, Councillor G R Aley presented 
the report containing the Task Group’s recommendations to the 
Cabinet.

The work undertaken by the Task Group was welcomed.  Some 
improvements to the re-letting of void properties had already 
been seen although further improvements were required.  
Changes to the way in which voids were dealt with would be 
incorporated within the Place Review – this, and the Task 
Group’s findings were mutually supportive pieces of work, and 
the Task Group’s recommendations would be taken forward and 

Martin Cregg 
(Interim 
Housing 
Manager 
Landlord), 
through Phil 
Stacey 
(Housing 
Options 
Manager)

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 5a)



access once vacated and automated 
communications with customers.     

b) That the management of tenancies is 
overhauled to ensure property standards 
are maintained and/or recharges for 
repairs are appropriately received. This 
includes procedures used at the 
commencement of any new tenancy to 
ensure the efficiency and effectiveness of 
tenancy management and to ensure 
everyone, including the tenant, is aware 
of their duties and responsibilities during 
their tenancy. This includes a need for 
clear communication of procedures to be 
followed during and at the end of the 
tenancies, such as the handing in of 
notice and the timescales/method to be 
followed for the return of keys. This way 
of working will ensure swift timescales at 
the start of the process and support 
subsequent actions in the process to 
meet turnaround times. 

c) That the marketing of properties is 
investigated undertaken, with new 
methods actively sought. In the first 
instance it is recommended that the 
Council website and face book page is 
utilised to market properties. Especially 
those where interest has been lacking. 
Other techniques such as choice based 

fed into the service review.

It was stated that the loss of revenue due to properties being 
unlet for 20-30 days and longer would be incorporated into 
targets set as part of the Place Review.  Members were also 
advised that hard to let properties would be part of the review of 
the Council’s housing stock, and information from this would be 
incorporated into the report (requested as a recommendation of 
the Task Group) due to be considered by the Performance 
Monitoring Panel in November.

DECISION:

That the following recommendations of the Task Group be 
approved, and be taken forward and fed into the Place Review: 

a) That the voids process is amalgamated into one voids team 
and the process along with a number of actions within this 
are refined and/or removed.  This is for all properties within 
the housing stock (sheltered or general needs housing).  
This may rely upon digital applications, key safes at 
properties to allow quicker access once vacated and 
automated communications with customers;

b) That the management of tenancies is overhauled to ensure 
property standards are maintained and/or recharges for 
repairs are appropriately received.  This includes procedures 
used at the commencement of any new tenancy to ensure 
the efficiency and effectiveness of tenancy management and 
to ensure everyone, including the tenant, is aware of their 
duties and responsibilities during their tenancy.  This 
includes a need for clear communication of procedures to be 

P
age 6



lettings should be investigated further 
and where appropriate put into action. 

d) That the current contracts are reviewed 
that directly impact the voids timeline, 
potentially seeking to bring back in-house 
some services such as asbestos surveys 
and EPC Energy Performance Certificate 
assessing. 

e) That the current allocations policy is 
reviewed for effectiveness alongside a 
strategic property review for hard to let 
properties within the housing stock. 

f) That the Housing Allocations policy is 
reviewed to ensure that waiting lists are 
appropriate for the housing need of South 
Holland. 

g) That the voids process provides high 
quality properties within a consistent turn 
around that meets the needs of our 
tenants 

h) That these recommendations are 
allocated to an identified officer to ensure 
their action and that an update is 
received by the Performance Monitoring 
Panel on actions against these at 7th 
November 2017 meeting. 

followed during and at the end of the tenancies, such as the 
handing in of notice and the timescales/method to be 
followed for the return of keys.  This way of working will 
ensure swift timescales at the start of the process and 
support subsequent actions in the process to meet 
turnaround times;

c) That the marketing of properties is undertaken, with new 
methods actively sought.  In the first instance it is 
recommended that the Council website and Facebook page 
is utilised to market properties, especially those where 
interest has been lacking.  Other techniques such as choice 
based lettings should be investigated further and where 
appropriate put into action;

d) That the current contracts are reviewed, that directly impact 
the voids timeline, potentially seeking to bring back in-house 
some services such as Energy Performance Certificate 
assessing;

e) That the current allocations policy is reviewed for 
effectiveness alongside a strategic property review for hard 
to let properties within the housing stock;

f) That the Housing Allocations policy is reviewed to ensure 
that waiting lists are appropriate for the housing need of 
South Holland;

g) That the voids process provides high quality properties within 
a consistent turn around that meets the needs of our tenants;  
and

P
age 7



h) That these recommendations are allocated to an identified 
officer to ensure their action and that an update is received 
by the Performance Monitoring Panel on actions against 
these at the 7 November 2017 meeting.

P
age 8



KEY DECISION PLAN Issued – 25 August 2017

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision 
is likely to be made, to: 

 Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months

The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is 
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise 
stated, come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period  from the date of publication of 
any decision.  

Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more 
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any 
single financial year above the threshold of £75,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £180,000 in respect of capital expenditure.”

Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating 
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral 
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy 
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies)

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 7

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

Lincolnshire 
Wellbeing 
Service

Delivery of the Wellbeing Service Meetings and Discussions Portfolio Holder for 
Housing and Health Before 
30 Sep 2017

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

CSU Building 
Materials 
Contract

To award a contract. Portfolio Holder for 
Housing. 

Meetings and discussions. 

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 31 Aug 
2017

Portfolio Holder 
for Place

Insourcing of 
clearance and 
maintenance 
services - TUPE 
transfer

To seek approval for the insourcing of 
work areas and transfer of staff to the 
Council’s Environmental Services 
team.

South Holland 
Maintenance

Cabinet 19 Sep 2017

South Holland District 
Council 20 Sep 2017

P
age 10



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

New sewerage 
maintenance 
contract for 
council housing 
stock

To award new sewerage maintenance 
contract for the housing stock.

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing Landlord, 
Housing Manager.

Informal meetings and 
discussions.

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 30 Sep 
2017

Portfolio Holder 
for Finance

Welland Homes 
Limited - 
Development 
Business Plan

To outline the findings of the review of 
the next layer of the Welland Homes 
Business Plan.

Welland Homes 
Limited - 
Development 
Business Plan

South Holland District 
Council 20 Sep 2017

Portfolio Holder 
for Place

Update on the 
Garden Waste 
Collection Pilot

To update Councillors on the Garden 
Waste Pilot, and set out options for the 
future. 

Portfolio Holder for Place 
and Executive Director 
Place

Meetings and 
correspondence

Update on the 
Garden Waste 
Collection Pilot

Cabinet 21 Nov 2017

South Holland District 
Council 17 Jan 2018

P
age 11



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

CSU Electrical 
Materials Supply 
Contract (EMSC) 
2017 - 2021

To award the EMSC to the successful 
supplier from the outcome of the 
procurement process Meetings and discussions

Officer Decisions Before 
31 Aug 2017

*Cabinet Membership
The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader)
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council)
Councillor M G Chandler (Deputy Leader)
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor P E Coupland (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C Johnson (currently Cabinet Support Member, Portfolio Holder from 29 August 2017)
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor S Slade (Portfolio Holder until 29 August 2017)
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder)

If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact:

Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

P
age 12

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Director Strategy and Governance

To: Performance Monitoring Panel - 5 September 2017
Cabinet - 19 September 2017

Author: Greg Pearson – Corporate Improvement and Performance Manager

Subject: Performance Overview Report – Quarter 1 2017/18

Purpose: To provide an update on Council performance for the period 1 April 2017 to 
30 June 2017

Recommendation: 

To note the content of the report

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.0.1 The Quarter 1 2017/18 Performance Report (Appendix A) aims to provide Members and 
residents with information about how the Council is delivering its services and how it is 
progressing against its Corporate Priorities.  The covering report highlights in further detail 
some of the indicators within the performance report.

1.0.2 Areas where performance has improved are brought to Members’ attention, as are areas of 
concern where performance is below expected levels or is considered to be worsening.

1.1 Key Performance Indicators

1.1.1 Quarter 1 saw performance improve in in comparison to quarter 4. Performance is rated as 
moderate with 11 indicators being green (42%) which indicates good performance. There 
are 3 (12%) amber indicators and 10 red indicators (38%); highlighting lower than expected 
performance. There are 6 indicators which are classified as data only; this means that they 
are monitored without requiring a target.  

Page 13

Agenda Item 9



1.2 Areas of Success

Waste Services
The percentage of waste collected that was recycled or composted saw an increase; this is 
in part due to the addition of the green waste collection service. Targets were increased in 
line with this and will continue to be monitored to ensure targets are in line with season 
trends.
The missed waste collection rates were considerably reduced when compared to quarter 1 
of the previous year; this is due to the normalising of the route changes that were made last 
year and shows a great performance of 99.98% collection rate.

Commercial Property Occupancy
The occupancy of our commercial properties continued at 100%, the 50 units we own have 
been let at full capacity since February 2016. 

Planning Applications
The performance of the planning team continues to be reported above target with 92.75% 
of applications determined within time, this refers to 384 applications..

Revenues and Benefits
Following on from the performance improvements seen in 2016/17, this has continued with 
quarter 1 showing an error rate of 0.15%, the lowest it has been.

Both the business rates and council tax collections are also performing well and just above 
target.

1.3 Areas of Concern

The following areas are either not achieving their target or are experiencing a significant 
decline in performance:

Housing Void Figures
Overall housing void days was higher than target at 38 days, this is also an increase on the 
performance of the same quarter last year. The service is currently undergoing a major 
redesign with the process of void management an integral part of the re design. 
May impacted the figures following 3 properties which were void for a large amount of time 
due to major works and 1 property which did not have a waiting list of people for the type of 
property available.

This is supported by the breakdown of void figures into types where we saw contractor void 
times taking  longer in general needs properties, which are more likely to need major works 
and shorter in sheltered properties which are less likely to suffer neglect and damage. 

In terms of the letting stage of void properties, general needs properties were let within their 
target time; where there are usually larger waiting lists, and sheltered properties took longer 
to let due to the lack of suitable tenants on the waiting list. 

Sickness
There are 2 new indicators for sickness, as well as the overall days lost to sickness, we 
now report the breakdown by short and long term sickness. This will provide more context 
to understand where the days lost to sickness are due to longer term illnesses.

Overall, sickness was just over what was targeted for the quarter at 2.69 days lost per full 
time equivalent. Within that figure it is clear that the most days were lost due to long term 
sickness with 11 people off in the period totalling 479.58 days.

Page 14



Short term sickness saw more people off, 40 in the quarter, with fewer days lost, as you 
would expect

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 Members are asked to consider the information contained within the report.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 Report for consideration, in order to fulfil the Performance Monitoring Panel’s remit.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The Council’s performance is properly scrutinised.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Constitution & Legal

5.1.1 The report is made within the terms of reference of the Performance Monitoring Panel.

5.2 Corporate Priorities

5.2.1 The report presents progress monitoring of performance of the corporate priorities.

5.3 Financial

5.3.1 The report contains information on Council’s performance which does convey some 
information relating to financial matters.

5.4 Reputation

5.4.1 Performance issues can cause some reputational consequence.  It is the purpose of this 
report to highlight performance issues at an early stage.

5.5 Risk Management

5.5.1 Performance issues may be subject to risk management measures to protect Council 
interests.

5.6 Staffing

5.6.1 The report contains information relating to staffing issues.

6.0    WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 

6.1     No Wards or Communities are affected 

7.0    ACRONYMS 

7.1     None

Page 15



Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Greg Pearson – Corporate Improvement & Performance 

Manager
Telephone Number: 01362 656866
Email: greg.pearson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting
Name and Post: Greg Pearson – Corporate Improvement & Performance 

Manager

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A Quarter 1 Performance Report

Page 16

file:///C:/Users/CharlottePaine/Democratic%20Services/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc
mailto:greg.pearson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk


2017/18 Q1 SHDC PMP Report 
 

Generated on: 07 August 2017 
 

 
 

                  

                  

Indicator % of Customer Complaints Upheld - Stage 1 Trend Chart 
Complaints upheld as a % 
of all stage 1 complaints 
closed in period  
This is calculated using the 
number of complaints 
upheld divided by the total 
number of complaints 
closed in the period  

  

Same Period Last Year 

 # of complaints upheld Total # of complaints Value 

Q1 2016/17 9 42 21.43% 

Current Performance 

 # of complaints upheld Total # of complaints Value 

Q1 2017/18 6 18 33.33% 
 

 
  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  

25% 

  

A lower % is better as we look to reduce the 
number of complaints upheld for an SHDC 
error  

There has been a reduction in the number of complaints closed 
compared to last year which has meant that percentage upheld is 
higher, despite this number upheld being less than last year.  
Upheld complaints peaked in June where 5 were upheld. Work is 
ongoing to understand what the reasons are for upheld complaints 
and how we can learn lessons from these complaints and turn 
complaints into valuable feedback.  
 

 
                  

                  

P
age 17



Indicator % of Customer Complaints Upheld - Stage 2 Trend Chart 
Complaints upheld as a % 
of all stage 2 complaints 
closed in period 
This is calculated using the 
number of complaints 
upheld divided by the total 
number of complaints 
closed in the period 

  

Same Period Last Year 

 # complaints upheld # complaints closed Value 

Q1 2016/17 1 7 14.29% 

Current Performance 

 # complaints upheld # complaints closed Value 

Q1 2017/18 1 6 16.67%  
 

 
  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  

25% 

  

A lower % is better as we look to reduce the 
number of complaints upheld for an SHDC 
error  

Numbers of complaints remain similar to that of the same period last 
year, with only 1 complaint upheld. Work is ongoing to understand 
what the reasons are for upheld complaints and how we can learn 
lessons from these complaints and turn complaints into valuable 
feedback.  
 

 
                  

                  

Indicator % of Calls Abandoned Trend Chart 
% of calls that are 
abandoned (call 
terminated prior to 
answering), excluding 
those abandoned within 5 
seconds.  
 
This is a combined 
measure across Customer 
Contact, Revenues and 
Benefits calls  

  

Same Period Last Year 

 Calls Abandoned Calls Received Value 

Q1 2016/17 3,452 32,328 10.68% 

Current Performance 

 Calls Abandoned Calls Received Value 

Q1 2017/18 2,887 28,444 10.15% 
 

 
  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  

No Target  

  

A lower % is better as we look to answer more 
calls 

There has been a reduction in the number of calls received and the 
number that were terminated prior to answering, when compared to 
the same period last year. June saw the best performance with only 
5.62% of calls abandoned (504 calls). 

P
age 18



Indicator Average Wait Time in Seconds Trend Chart 
Average time to answer 
phone calls in seconds  
This is measured across 
customer services, 
revenues and benefits 
calls.  

  

Same Period Last Year 

   Value 

Q1 2016/17   114.89 

Current Performance 

   Value 

Q1 2017/18   117.67 
 

 
  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  

No Target  

  

A lower number is better as it indicates less 
time waiting for a call to be answered 

There has been a slight increase in the average wait time for Q1 
when compared to the same time last year. However, June has seen a 
reduction to less than 82 seconds and will continue to be monitored 
to see if this reduction is a new trend. 
 

 
Indicator % of household waste recycled or composted Trend Chart 
% of household waste 
which has been recycled 
and composted (includes 
garden waste) against all 
the household waste 
collected   

Same Period Last Year 

 Tonnage of recycling 
and composting 

Total Tonnage 
Collected 

Value 

Q1 2016/17 2426.52 tonnes 7685.72 tonnes 31.54% 

Current Performance 

 Tonnage of recycling 
and composting 

Total Tonnage 
Collected 

Value 

Q1 2017/18 2638.86 tonnes 7869.64 tonnes 33.5% 
 

 

  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  32%    A higher % is better as we look to recycle or The addition of green waste collection has increased the tonnage 

P
age 19



compost more waste weights now collected for recycling and composting. Targets have 
been increased in the summer months to reflect this whilst data is 
collected to ensure accurate targets have been set. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Indicator Missed Waste Collection Rate Trend Chart 
Number of missed 
collections per 100,000 
people  

  

Same Period Last Year 

 Number of missed 
collections 

Per 100,000 collection 
figure 

Value 

Q1 2016/17 1,037 10.185 101.8 

Current Performance 

 Number of missed 
collections 

Per 100,000 collection 
figure 

Value 

Q1 2017/18 335 10.185 32.9 
 

 

  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  

33.0 

  

A lower number is better as we look to ensure 
fewer waste collections are missed 

There has been a dramatic reduction in the number of missed 
collections in Q1 of this year compared to last. There had been large 
re scheduling of routes last year, this now looks to have settled down 
and a collection rate of 99.98% is a great performance. 

 
                  

                  

P
age 20



Indicator Waste sent to 'Energy from Waste' per Household (kg) Trend Chart 

 
Number of Kg’s of residual 
waste collected per 
household sent to Energy 
from Waste  
Calculated by 'residual 
waste collected' x 1000 
then divided by number of 
households waste has 
been collected from  

  

Same Period Last Year 

 Numerator Denominator Value 

Q1 2016/17 5544.32 tonnes 39,450 46.8 

Current Performance 

 Numerator Denominator Value 

Q1 2017/18 5801.90 tonnes 39,450 49.0 
 

 
  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  

45.0 

  

A lower number is better as we look to reduce 
the amount of waste sent for incineration  

Nationally there has been an increase seen in the amount of waste 
being collected. We are actively working with Lincolnshire County 
Council and the Lincolnshire Waste Partnership to identify ways to 
address this increasing trend locally. 

 
Indicator Commercial Property Occupancy Trend Chart 
Occupancy levels of the 
council's industrial units  

  

Same Period Last Year 

 Number of units let Total number of units Value 

Q1 2016/17 50 50 100% 

Current Performance 

 Number of units let Total number of units Value 

Q1 2017/18 50 50 100% 
 

 
  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  
90% 

  
A higher number is better as we look to rent 
out as many council owned industrial units as 
possible 

Occupancy continue to remain at full capacity 

P
age 21



 
Indicator Staff turnover % Trend Chart 
% of total leavers against 
total number of staff 
employed in period 
(includes involuntary 
leavers)  
  
Target is 10% which has 
been benchmarked  

  

Same Period Last Year 

 Number of leavers in 
period 

Total number of staff 
in period 

Value 

Q1 2016/17 7 256 2.73% 

Current Performance 

 Number of leavers in 
period 

Total number of staff 
in period 

Value 

Q1 2017/18 9 244 3.69% 
 

 

  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  

2.5% 

  

Lower is better as we look to retain staff  There has been an increase in the number of leavers in the period 
compared to last year; there is also a reduction in the overall number 
of staff. This is to be expected as we work through the moving 
forward programme which includes a number of service reviews. 
We may review the target whilst we continue with the service reviews. 

 
                  

              

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

  

P
age 22



Indicator Working Days Lost to Sickness per FTE Trend Chart 
Total number of working 
days lost per Full Time 
Equivalent.  
This is calculated by taking 
the number of days lost to 
sickness and dividing it by 
the number of full time 
equivalent staff in the 
period  

  

Same Period Last Year 

 Number of days lost Number of FTE Value 

Q1 2016/17 N/A N/A 2.42 

Current Performance 

 Number of days lost Number of FTE Value 

Q1 2017/18 606.18 225.75 2.69 
 

 
  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  
2.5 

  
Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of working time lost to sickness  

There has been a slight change in the targets as we look to see what 
is achievable and in line with benchmarking. Therefore this year’s Q1 
performance is amber, despite being slightly higher than last years.  

  
Indicator Working Days Lost to Long Term Sickness per FTE Trend Chart 
Number of working days 
lost per Full Time 
Equivalent for long term 
sickness.  
This is calculated by taking 
the number of days lost to 
long term sickness and 
dividing it by the number 
of full time equivalent staff 
in the period  

  

Same Period Last Year 

 Number of days lost - 
long term 

Number of FTE Value 

Q1 2016/17 N/A N/A N/A 

Current Performance 

 Number of days lost - 
long term 

Number of FTE Value 

Q1 2017/18 479.58 225.75 2.12 
 

 

  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  
 No Target 

  
Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of working time lost to sickness  

The majority of days lost to sickness in the quarter related to long 
term sickness, as you would expect. 15 people were off on long term 
sickness during the quarter.  

P
age 23



 
 
 

Indicator Working Days Lost to Short Term Sickness per FTE Trend Chart 
Number of working days 
lost per Full Time 
Equivalent for short term 
sickness.  
This is calculated by taking 
the number of days lost to 
long term sickness and 
dividing it by the number 
of full time equivalent staff 
in the period  

  

Same Period Last Year 

 Number of days lost - 
short term 

Number of FTE Value 

Q1 2016/17    

Current Performance 

 Number of days lost - 
short term 

Number of FTE Value 

Q1 2017/18 126.6 225.75 0.56 
 

 

  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  

No Target  

  

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of working time lost to sickness  

There were 40 people who were off due to short term sickness in the 
quarter, on average this accounts for 3.2 days sickness for each 
person who was off in the period. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 24



Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (total ave. key to key) All Tenures Trend Chart 
Total time in days from 
keys in to keys out - 
including major works for 
all tenures (General Needs 
and Sheltered Housing)  
This is calculated by total 
number of days properties 
remain vacant divided by 
the number or properties 
vacant in the period  

  

Same Period Last Year 

 Total # days void Total # properties void Value 

Q1 2016/17 N/A N/A 31 days 

Current Performance 

 Total # days void Total # properties void Value 

Q1 2017/18 2,298 61 38 days 
 

 
  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  

28 days 

  

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
number of days vacant and therefore not 
receiving rent payments  

Performance in the quarter overall was above target, though April saw 
a better performance at 28 days. The performance in May was 
affected by 3 properties which had larger than usual void days due to 
major works and lack of a waiting list for 1 property. The housing 
service is currently going through a service review and work is under 
way to ensure that the re-design of the service addresses the issues 
affecting this. Through this, we should see a reduction in void times.  
 

 
Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (Keys In to Keys Back from Contractor) - All Trend Chart 
Total time in days from 
keys in from tenant to 
works completed by the 
contractor and the 
property is ready to be let  
This is calculated by total 
number of days all 
properties remained 
vacant whilst the keys are 
with the contractors to 
complete works divided by 
the total number of 
properties vacant in the 
period  

  

Same Period Last Year 

 Total # days void 
(contract) 

Total # properties void Value 

Q1 2016/17 N/A N/A 20 days 

Current Performance 

 Total # days void 
(contract) 

Total # properties void Value 

Q1 2017/18 1,917 61 31 days 
 

 

  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  
25 days 

  
Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of time a property is vacant whilst 
works are completed  

Like the overall performance, there was an impact due to May’s 
properties; however, there was no green performance in the quarter 
for this indicator. 

P
age 25



Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (Contractor) - General Needs Trend Chart 
Total time in days from 
keys in from tenant to 
works completed by the 
contractor and the 
property is ready to be let. 
This is only for 'general 
needs' properties  
This is calculated by total 
number of days general 
needs properties remained 
vacant whilst the keys are 
with the contractors to 
complete works divided by 
the total number of 
general needs properties 
vacant in the period  

  

Same Period Last Year 

 Total # days void 
(contract) 

Total # properties void Value 

Q1 2016/17 N/A N/A 22 days 

Current Performance 

 Total # days void 
(contract) 

Total # properties void Value 

Q1 2017/18 1,498 38 39 days 
 

 

  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  

25 days 

  

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of time a property is vacant whilst 
works are completed  

Major works have impacted upon the performance for this indicator 
as we see an increase in the days taken for general needs properties 
to be made ready to be re-let. This should be addressed in the 
service re-design work which is underway. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 26



Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (Contractor) - Sheltered Housing Trend Chart 
Total time in days from 
keys in from tenant to 
works completed by the 
contractor and the 
property is ready to be let. 
This is only for 'sheltered' 
properties  
This is calculated by total 
number of days sheltered 
properties remained 
vacant whilst the keys are 
with the contractors to 
complete works divided by 
the total number of 
sheltered properties vacant 
in the period  

  

Same Period Last Year 

 Total # days void 
(contract) 

Total # properties void Value 

Q1 2016/17 N/A N/A 17 days 

Current Performance 

 Total # days void 
(contract) 

Total # properties void Value 

Q1 2017/18 419 23 18 days 
 

 

  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  

25 days 

  

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of time a property is vacant whilst 
works are completed  

Performance is green in sheltered housing properties where the 
likelihood of lots of work needing to be done between lettings is 
reduced.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 27



Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (Letting) - General Needs Trend Chart 
Total time in days for 
properties to be let after 
the works were completed 
by the contractor. This is 
only for 'general needs' 
properties  
This is calculated by total 
number of days general 
needs properties remained 
vacant whilst the property 
is waiting to be let after 
the contractors completed 
works divided by the total 
number of general needs 
properties vacant in the 
period  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Same Period Last Year 

 Total # days void 
(letting) 

Total # properties void Value 

Q1 2016/17 N/A N/A 4 days 

Current Performance 

 Total # days void 
(letting) 

Total # properties void Value 

Q1 2017/18 94 38 2 days 
 

 

  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  

3 days 

  

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of time a property is vacant for letting 
post works completion  

Letting days have remained within target throughout the quarter and 
shows there is work being done to get tenants ready for properties 
whilst they are being worked on. 

 

P
age 28



Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (Letting) - Sheltered Housing Trend Chart 
Total time in days for 
properties to be let after 
the works were completed 
by the contractor. This is 
only for 'sheltered' 
properties  
This is calculated by total 
number of days sheltered 
properties remained 
vacant whilst the property 
is waiting to be let after 
the contractors completed 
works divided by the total 
number of sheltered 
properties vacant in the 
period  

  

Same Period Last Year 

 Total # days void 
(letting) 

Total # properties void Value 

Q1 2016/17 N/A N/A 25 days 

Current Performance 

 Total # days void 
(letting) 

Total # properties void Value 

Q1 2017/18 237 23 10 days 
 

 

  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  

3 days 

  

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of time a property is vacant for letting 
post works completion  

Performance has improved compared to the same period last year, 
however it is still above the target of 3 days. This is due to the 
properties which have no waiting list and therefore are unable to be 
let quickly. This is also to be looked at during the service re-design. 

 
Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (Key to Key) - General Needs Trend Chart 
Total time in days from 
keys in from tenant to keys 
out to the new tenant. This 
is only for 'general needs' 
properties  
This is calculated by total 
number of days general 
needs properties remained 
vacant divided by the total 
number of general needs 
properties vacant in the 
period  

  

Same Period Last Year 

 Total # days void (ktok) Total # properties void Value 

Q1 2016/17 N/A N/A 22 days 

Current Performance 

 Total # days void (ktok) Total # properties void Value 

Q1 2017/18 1,633 38 43 days 
 

 
  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  
28 days 

  
Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
number of days vacant and therefore not 

The key to key value is the overall of the contractor days and letting 
time, therefore it is clear that the issue that caused this poor 

P
age 29



receiving rent payments  performance is the delay in contractor days. 
 
 

 
                  

                  

Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (Key to Key) - Sheltered Housing Trend Chart 
Total time in days from 
keys in from tenant to keys 
out to the new tenant. This 
is only for 'general needs' 
properties  
This is calculated by total 
number of days general 
needs properties remained 
vacant divided by the total 
number of general needs 
properties vacant in the 
period  

  

Same Period Last Year 

 Total # days void (ktok) Total # of properties 
void 

Value 

Q1 2016/17 N/A N/A 40 days 

Current Performance 

 Total # days void (ktok) Total # of properties 
void 

Value 

Q1 2017/18 221.667 9 25 days 
 

 

  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  

28 days 

  

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
number of days vacant and therefore not 
receiving rent payments  

The key to key value is the overall of the contractor days and letting 
time, therefore the good performance in the contractor days has 
ensured this indicator is within target. 
 

          
              

    

                 

P
age 30



Indicator Cases Prevented from Homelessness per 1,000 households Trend Chart 
P1E Return - Prevention 
and Relieving of 
Homelessness  
Number of potentially 
homeless cases diverted 
from homelessness per 
1,000 households  

  

Same Period Last Year 

 Numerator Denominator Value 

Q1 2016/17 N/A N/A 3.6 

Current Performance 

 Numerator Denominator Value 

Q1 2017/18 79 38.693 2.0 
 

 
  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  

No Target  

  

This is not a targeted measure. The number 
does not reflect % of cases prevented from 
homelessness and therefore will fluctuate 
dependent upon demand to the service.  

The information provided includes April and May, June was not 
available at the time of writing the report 

 
Indicator % of all planning applications determined within time Trend Chart 
Number of planning 
applications determined 
within their statutory times 
divided by total number of 
applications received.  
Includes all application 
types (majors, minors, 
others)  

  

Same Period Last Year 

 # plan apps determined 
in time 

# planning applications 
received 

Value 

Q1 2016/17 N/A N/A N/A 

Current Performance 

 # plan apps determined 
in time 

# planning applications 
received 

Value 

Q1 2017/18 384 414 92.75% 
 

 

  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  
70% 

  
Higher is better as we look to determine as 
many as possible within their timescales  

Significantly above target, reflects effective use of extensions of time 
where required plus hard work of officers in dealing with applications 

P
age 31



within statutory timeframes particularly for householder applications. 
        

                  

                  

Indicator Housing Benefit LA Error Rate Trend Chart 
Local Authority error in 
Housing Benefit 
overpayment  
Amount of benefits 
overpaid divided by 
benefits paid (% of overall 
expenditure)  

  

Same Period Last Year 

 Error expenditure Total housing benefit 
expend 

Value 

Q1 2016/17 N/A N/A 0.46% 

Current Performance 

 Error expenditure Total housing benefit 
expend 

Value 

Q1 2017/18 6,291.29 4,203,348.61 0.15% 
 

 

  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  

0.42% 

  

Lower is better as we look to minimise the 
amount of money paid in error and reduce the 
risk of financial penalty (which occurs above 
0.48%)  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Following the work under taken last year alongside Civica, it is clear 
to see a dramatic improvement in this year’s error rate compared to 
last years. 
 
 
 

 

P
age 32



Indicator Business Rate In Year Collection Rate Trend Chart 
Amount of Business Rates 
collected in the year 
against the total 
collectable debit  

  

Same Period Last Year 

 In year collection 
amount 

Total collectable debit Value 

Q1 2016/17 N/A N/A 30.1% 

Current Performance 

 In year collection 
amount 

Total collectable debit Value 

Q1 2017/18 8,107,286.34 26,458,218.98 30.64% 
 

 

  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  
30% 

  
Higher is better as we look to collect as much 
of the business rates debit as possible  

Collection rates remain slightly above target meaning that slightly 
more has been collected than was expected, to date.   

 
Indicator Council Tax In Year Collection Rate Trend Chart 
Amount of Council Tax 
collected in the year 
against the total 
collectable debit  

  

Same Period Last Year 

 In year collection 
amount 

Total collectable debit Value 

Q1 2016/17 N/A N/A 30.35% 

Current Performance 

 In year collection 
amount 

Total collectable debit Value 

Q1 2017/18 13,058,392.31 43,006,805.21 30.36% 
 

 

  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  
30.35% 

  
Higher is better as we look to collect as much 
of the Council Tax debit as possible  

Collection rates remain slightly above target meaning that slightly 
more has been collected than was expected, to date. 

 

P
age 33



Indicator New Homes - Affordable Trend Chart 
Number of affordable 
homes completed in the 
District the period  

  

Same Period Last Year 

 Numerator Denominator Value 

Q1 2016/17 N/A N/A 0 

Current Performance 

 Numerator Denominator Value 

Q1 2017/18 N/A N/A 9 
 

 
  Current Target   What does good look like?   Latest Note   

  

  

  

Higher is better as we look to increase the 
number of affordable properties in the District  

No new affordable dwellings were completed in June. 
There were three affordable homes completed in May.  
These were two affordable rent properties in Spalding and 1 shared 
equity. 
There were six affordable homes completed in April.  
These were three shared equity properties (2 in the Countryside, 1 in 
Spalding), two affordable rent properties (both in Spalding) and 1 
social rent property (in the Countryside). 

 
  
 

P
age 34



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Shared Executive Manager, Governance – Mark Stinson

To: Performance Monitoring Panel – 5 September 2017

Author: Christine Morgan – Democratic Services Officer

Subject: Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel

Recommendation:

a) That the Panel gives consideration to the report and identifies any issues for discussion; and

b) That the Panel considers the information provided in the draft Action Plan at Appendix C to the 
report, and prioritises which issues it wishes to take forward as part of its Work Programme for 
the forthcoming year.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 This report records the issues for consideration that have been identified by the Panel for 
inclusion on its Work Programme.

1.2 Issues

1.2.1 Appendix A sets out the dates of future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 
consideration.  These items were either originally suggested by councillors or are being 
referred to the Panel from officers or the Cabinet.  This appendix will be updated as new 
items are identified.

1.2.2 Appendix B sets out the task groups that have been identified by the Panel.  The table 
shows:

 The name of the task group
 What it wants to achieve
 Key dates
 Membership of the task group
 When the task group will be reporting back to the Panel

1.2.3 It is hoped that in presenting the information in this way, and by having the report as a 
standing item on the agenda, it will record the issues identified by the Panel and provide the 
opportunity for councillors to monitor the progress of its Work Programme.

1.3 Potential Work Programme items suggested by the Panel on 4 July 2017

1.3.1 At its last meeting on 4 July 2017, the Panel had considered its Work Programme, how it 
could be progressed, and issues the Panel or its Task Groups should be involved in 
scrutinising.  The Executive Director Commercialisation had been in attendance to facilitate 
the discussion.

Page 35

Agenda Item 10



1.3.2 A number of issues had been raised, and these have been incorporated into a draft Action 
Plan (attached at Appendix C to this report).  As requested, officers have identified which 
could be dealt with by further information and reports, and which could be dealt with in 
other ways.  Update information on leisure facilities, fly tipping, and economic development 
has been provided as part of the Action Plan, and a link to the Lincolnshire County Council 
website in relation to pot holes is also included.  Members are requested to consider the 
way forward.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme.

2.2 To do nothing.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To allow councillors to feed into the Panel’s calendar of Work Programme items and the 
Work Programme on a regular basis, to ensure that they stay relevant and up to date.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The calendar of Work Programme items and the Work Programme will provide councillors 
with up to date and relevant information.  Timelines for various calendar items and 
proposed task groups within the Work Programme are included within the appendices.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1 There are no direct carbon footprint and environmental issue implications associated with 
this report.  As individual items are progressed through the work programme, their carbon 
footprint and environmental issue implications will be assessed.  

5.2 Constitution & Legal

5.2.1 There are no direct constitution and legal implications associated with this report.  As 
individual items are progressed through the work programme, their constitution and legal 
implications will be assessed.

5.3 Contracts

5.3.1 There are no direct contract implications associated with this report.  As individual items are 
progressed through the work programme, their contract implications will be assessed.

5.4 Corporate Priorities

5.4.1 In identifying issues for inclusion on the Work Programme, councillors consider the 
suitability of the subject, taking into account such considerations as whether the issue is 
strategic and significant and whether it is likely to lead to effective outcomes.  One of the 
indicators against which each potential task group is scored identifies how strongly the topic 
links to the Council’s key aims and priorities. 

5.5 Crime and Disorder 

5.5.1 There are no direct crime and disorder implications associated with this report.  As 

Page 36



individual items are progressed through the work programme, their crime and disorder 
implications will be assessed.

5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.6.1 There are no direct equality and diversity and human rights implications associated with this 
report.  As individual items are progressed through the work programme, their equality and 
diversity and human rights implications will be assessed.

5.7 Financial 

5.7.1 There are no direct financial implications associated with this report. As individual items are 
progressed through the work programme, their financial implications will be assessed.

5.8 Health and Wellbeing

5.8.1 There are no direct health and wellbeing implications associated with this report.  As 
individual items are progressed through the work programme, their health and wellbeing 
implications will be assessed.

5.9 Reputation

5.9.1 There are no direct reputational implications associated with this report. As individual items 
are progressed through the work programme, any reputational implications for the Authority 
will be assessed.

5.10 Risk Management 

5.10.1 There are no direct risk management implications associated with this report.  As individual 
items are progressed through the work programme, their risk management implications will 
be assessed.

5.11 Safeguarding

5.11.1 There are no direct safeguarding implications associated with this report.  As individual 
items are progressed through the work programme, their safeguarding implications will be 
assessed.

5.12 Staffing

5.12.1 There are no direct staffing implications associated with this report.  As individual items are 
progressed through the work programme, their staffing implications will be assessed.

5.13 Stakeholders / Consultation  / Timescales

5.13.1 There are no direct stakeholder/consultation/timescale implications associated with this 
report.  As individual items are progressed through the work programme, their 
stakeholder/consultation/timescale implications will be assessed.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 When a task group is considered for inclusion on the Panel’s Work Programme, it is 
assessed against criteria covering ‘Importance’, ‘Impact’ and ‘Value for Money’.  The 
‘Impact’ and ‘Value for Money’ score indicators consider how strongly the issue will affect a 
ward(s), customer group(s) or service area(s).  Only issues scoring highly will be included 

Page 37



on the Work Programme.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None.

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer

Name and Post: Christine Morgan
Telephone Number: 01775 764454
Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A Work Programme Calendar
Appendix B Task Group Work Programme 2017/18
Appendix C Draft Action Plan for items to be considered for inclusion on the 

Panel’s Work Programme

Page 38



 APPENDIX A

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME 
ITEMS

Date of Meeting Agenda items

5 September 
2017

 Central Contracts Team and Contract Register management – 
report outlining how the proposed new team will operate, 
covering concerns raised previously by the Panel and how 
they would be dealt with by the new team.  Members also to 
consider how the Panel should review the Contracts Register 
in the future. (Phil Adams).

 Re-letting of Void Properties Task Group – Response from 
Cabinet to recommendations within Final Report

 Performance Overview Report – Quarter 1, 2017-18
7 November 
2017

 Crime and Disorder – Update report on community safety and 
how it is being delivered through the various tiers of Groups 
and Panels (including the East Lincs CSP and newly formed 
Lincolnshire CSP) – Update to be provided every six months 
by the Portfolio Holder for Community Development.  A report 
will be provided by the Communities Manager and will also 
address issues around CCTV and the Council’s Anti-Social 
Behaviour Policy, raised by the Panel under its Work 
Programme on 4 July 2017.

 Swimming Pool and Leisure Facilities Contract Task Group – 
update on progress of recommendations (last update received 
16 May 2017)

 Voids Task Group – Update report on progress in actioning 
recommendations of the Task Group 

 Constitution changes, including amendments to Call-In – to 
discuss (Sarah Wolstenholme-Smy)

 Performance Overview Report – Quarter 2, 2017-18
6 February 
2018

 Performance Overview Report – Quarter 3, 2017-18
 Enforcement– report addressing the various types of 

enforcement (e.g planning/building control/littering) and how 
these would be dealt with in the future, following the Authority-
wide reorganisation.

1 May 2018  Performance Overview Report – Quarter 4, 2017-18

For consideration later in the year

 Note: Following consideration of the Key Decision Plan, PMP and PDP have 
requested that a special Joint Meeting will be held to discuss the setting up 
of the South Holland Building Consultancy prior to it being considered by 
Cabinet (date to be confirmed).

****************
To be considered annually:

The Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task Group presented its Final Report to 
Council on 21 January 2015.  Its first recommendation was:

Page 39



That the Council (i) advises the Charity Commission that the Task Group has 
considered the Commission’s Guidance on public benefit and is satisfied that the 
Council is compliant; (ii) provides a copy of this report to the Commission in order to 
outline the actions proposed by the Council; and (iii) invites  the Performance 
Monitoring Panel to appoint a Task Group on an annual (single meeting) basis 
for the specific purpose of ensuring that the Council remains compliant with 
Charity Commission Guidance.

Membership of Task Group to be agreed and meet on an annual basis to 
consider the issue.

Page 40



APPENDIX B

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – WORK PROGRAMME 2017/2018

Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

Swimming Pool and 
Leisure Centre Contract 
Task Group

To review the Spalding swimming pool and 
leisure centre, specifically:
 To consider performance, in relation to the 

contract, by the Authority and the 
contractor, particularly with reference to 
building maintenance and cleanliness, 
promotion of the facilities and reinvestment 
in the facilities;

 To look at the Council’s performance in 
monitoring the leisure facilities; and

 To learn from the outcomes of this scrutiny, 
to inform future contracts and contract 
monitoring.

1 December 
2015

21 January 
2016

J R Astill
T A Carter
G K Dark 
(Chairman)
J L King
A M Newton

30 August 2016

To Cabinet 8 
November 2016

Response and 
update on 
progress PMP 
4/2/17 and 
16/5/17. Next 
update 7/11/17.

Performance of the re-
letting of voids Task 
Group

To review the Council’s performance of re-
letting void properties and to make 
recommendations to help improve

15 June 
2016

3 October 
2016

GR Aley 
(Chairman)
MD Booth
CJTH Brewis
TA Carter

16 May 2017

To Cabinet 25 
July 2017

Sir Halley Stewart Playing 
Field Task Group

Recommendation of the original Task Group to 
appoint a Task Group on an annual (single 
meeting) basis for the specific purpose of 
ensuring that the Council remained compliant 

15 June 
2016

Upon 
completion of 
Voids Task 
Group

GR Aley
JR Astill
GK Dark
PC Foyster

P
age 41



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

with Charity Commission Guidance. AM Newton

Effectiveness of CCTV 
Task Group

Purpose of Review – To establish the current 
situation with regard to CCTV and make 
recommendations to Cabinet on the way 
forward.

Terms of Reference – To examine the 
effectiveness of the SHDC CCTV service and 
prospects for future provision.

Panel received update on 8 April 2014 from the 
Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society 
on the position regarding CCTV.  Performance 
information will be available on the new system 
in the future, once it becomes operational.  
The Task Group will remain in operation to 
scrutinise performance and will start to do 
this once the information becomes 
available.

6 November 
2012 

21 November 
2012 

B Alcock
M Howard
R M Rudkin
D J Wilkinson 
(Chairman)

  
Membership 
to be 
considered 
following 
District 
Council 
Election 

Interim report to 
PMP 29 January 
2013 
Interim report to 
Cabinet 19 
February 2013.
Tracking of 
recommendations 
to PMP 26 March 
2013
Updates to PMP:
8 April 2014
16 September 
2014
25 November 
2014
16 September 
2015

Leisure Facilities Task 
Group

Joint Task Group 
incorporating members of 
the Performance 

To make recommendations, regarding the 
present and future leisure     provision in South 
Holland.

1. By establishing what leisure provision the 
District Council presently provides, 
examining costs, resident satisfaction and 

30 May 
2012

21 January 
2014

G R Aley 
(Chairman)
D Ashby
A Casson
G K Dark
R Perkins
S Slade

Interim report 
presented to joint 
PMP/PDP – 19 
August 2014 
To Cabinet 7 
October 2014
Tracking of 

P
age 42



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

Monitoring and Policy 
Development Panels. 

competitiveness in order to identify ways of 
increasing income or reducing expenditure;

2. To understand what the District Council 
wishes to provide and what the public and 
major employers need; 

3. To examine the options for future provision 
either to be supplied by the Council, the 
private sector or shared management.

Agreed at PMP 25 November 2014 – A date 
for completion of the Business Plan looking at 
Leisure Services provision, being drawn 
together by the Community Development and 
Health Manager, be confirmed by the Assistant 
Director Community, and that a joint meeting of 
the Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy 
Development Panel, for consideration of the 
document, be arranged.

Following consideration of the update to PMP 
on 3 March 2015 (PDP members were invited 
to attend), it was agreed that leisure provision 
must be a priority for the Council, and must be 
considered as a priority by the next 
administration following the District Council 
election.

E Sneath
S Wilkinson

Lead Officer: 
Phil Adams

Membership 
to be 
considered 
following 
District 
Council 
Election

recommendations 
to PMP 25 
November 2014
Update on leisure 
options to PMP 3 
March 2015 (PDP 
members to 
attend PMP 
meeting)

P
age 43



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

Scrutiny of the Authority’s 
Emergency Plan

To scrutinise the robustness of the Emergency 
Plan.

To be considered when there is more capacity 
in the Work Programme to undertake a new 
Task Group – agreed at PMP 25 November 
2014 that Task Group be set up upon 
completion of the Sir Halley Stewart Playing 
Field Task Group.

8 April 2014 

The effectiveness of 
management companies 
set up to undertake 
maintenance on 
residential estates 
throughout the district 
past, present and for the 
future.

Scope to be confirmed. 25 
November 
2014

To be 
confirmed

To be 
confirmed

To be confirmedP
age 44



1

APPENDIX C

SUGGESTIONS FOR PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18

ISSUES RAISED BY PANEL CIP (CORPORATE 
IMPROVEMENT) 
LEAD/SERVICE HEAD

STATUS NEXT STEPS/PRIORITY FOR 
CONSIDERATION

EXISTING ISSUES

CCTV
 Performance figures showing benefits of 

system still not provided.
 Has installation of the system been 

completed?
 Element of frustration at inability to finish 

this work 
 Potentially need to scrutinise deployment 

and roll out process 
 Confirmation that value for money is being 

achieved and that the Police are getting 
good use from the CCTV system.

 Is CCTV being monitored in all areas?

CIP Team – Corporate 
Improvement and 
Performance Manager, 
Greg Pearson

Communities Manager – 
Emily Holmes

Report to be provided to the Panel on 1 
November 2017 by the Communities 
Manager, working with the CIP Team, as 
part of the Crime and Disorder report 
already scheduled for this meeting, and 
will specifically address these issues.

Options – Report and/or 
Task Group

Emergency response (current item on the Work 
Programme – Scrutiny of the Authority’s 
Emergency Plan) – In light of the recent Grenfell 
Tower disaster, how would the Authority deal 
with a similar situation within the district?

Emergency Planning Officer 
– Angharad Morgan

To be programmed into a future PMP 
meeting.

Report to be presented to 
the Committee – Panel to 
consider which meeting.

P
age 45



2

ISSUES RAISED BY PANEL CIP (CORPORATE 
IMPROVEMENT) 
LEAD/SERVICE HEAD

STATUS NEXT STEPS/PRIORITY FOR 
CONSIDERATION

Leisure facilities
 The future of leisure facilities within the 

district was often raised however members 
reiterated that they should be able to feed 
into any decisions made.

 Leisure fed into the economic development 
of the district – what was the current 
situation?

 The work of the Leisure Facilities Task Group 
that had produced an interim report in 2014 
should be used as part of any consideration 
of future leisure provision.

Shared Executive Director 
Place – Rob Walker/
Environmental Services 
Manager – Emily Spicer

Sports and leisure (plus pitches) and 
community facilities - review to be 
commissioned in order to set strategy.
Procurement process and preparations to 
commence.
The work of the 2014 Task Group, and 
these comments, will be fed into that 
process.

NEW ISSUES

Housing Allocations Policy – Performance and 
amendments

CIP Team - Corporate 
Improvement and 
Performance Manager, 
Greg Pearson

Service Head – To be 
confirmed

Report to be provided to the Panel. Report to Committee – 
Panel to consider which 
meeting

Effectiveness of the Council’s Anti Social 
Behaviour Policy – there is a belief that the 
current system is not effective. 

Communities Manager – 
Emily Holmes

Report to be provided to the Panel on 1 
November 2017, as part of the Crime and 
Disorder report already scheduled for this 
meeting.

P
age 46



3

ISSUES RAISED BY PANEL CIP (CORPORATE 
IMPROVEMENT) 
LEAD/SERVICE HEAD

STATUS NEXT STEPS/PRIORITY FOR 
CONSIDERATION

Section 106 monies – what is this money spent 
on?

Finance – Ray Fleming
Legal – Jacqui Berridge
Planning – Richard Fidler 

To be programmed into a future PMP 
meeting

Report to be presented to 
the Committee – Panel to 
consider which meeting.

Fly tipping 
 What is the Authority doing to combat fly-

tipping?  How is fly-tipping investigated? 
What can the Authority do?  Does the policy 
on the amount of waste that can be taken to 
the Household Waste Recycling Centre have 
an effect on fly-tipping?     

 Are serious fly-tippers being dealt with, or 
only the cases that are easier to deal with?

CIP Team - Corporate 
Improvement and 
Performance Manager, 
Greg Pearson

Environmental Services 
Manager – Emily Spicer

South Holland District Council takes a zero 
tolerance on fly tipping. Where evidence is 
gathered we will progress the case and 
take legal action. Evidence can be a 
witness statement, interview under 
caution of the offender, evidence in the 
actual fly tip, photographs, vehicle 
registration number taken and/or overt 
camera footage. The majority of fly tipped 
materials is commercial waste and/or 
construction materials that would not be 
able to be taken to the Household Waste 
Recycling centre. The authority has seen an 
increase in residents using rogue traders 
who advertise on social media at a very 
low cost for clearance services. As such, 
the authority is increasing its education for 
residents to inform them that they are still 
liable for the waste if it has been fly tipped 
by someone else. This is known as ‘duty of 
care’.  

The Environmental Services 
Manager can provide the 
Panel with a briefing on fly 
tipping, alongside a briefing 
on Streetscene (as detailed 
below), if required. She can 
attend the meeting on 6 
February 2018.

Economic development – How is economic 
development undertaken and promoted?  Is it 
effective?

Executive Manager Growth 
and Prosperity – Tim Mills
Inward Investment 
Manager – Nigel Burch

Briefing note attached Options – Report and/or 
Task Group

P
age 47



4

ISSUES RAISED BY PANEL CIP (CORPORATE 
IMPROVEMENT) 
LEAD/SERVICE HEAD

STATUS NEXT STEPS/PRIORITY FOR 
CONSIDERATION

Commercialisation – How effectively is the 
Authority managing commercial opportunities?
 Have current commercial opportunities 

realised their projected aims, and if not, 
why?

 Were current commercial opportunities 
being used to their full potential?

 Should some commercial ventures, such as 
the Green Waste Scheme which has been 
very successful, be progressed more 
quickly?

 Was there the ability to react to success or 
lack or it?

CIP Team - Corporate 
Improvement and 
Performance Manager, 
Greg Pearson

Interim Project Consultant - 
Mark Astbury
Strategic Project Delivery  - 
Richard Hodgson
Strategic Housing Manager 
- Matthew Hogan
Executive Director Place - 
Rob Walker
Executive Director 
Commercialisation - 
Christine Marshall

To be programmed into a future PMP 
meeting.

Report to be presented to 
the Committee – Panel to 
consider which meeting

Resourcing of Scrutiny – Are there sufficient 
resources available for the Panels to undertake 
their work? (Suggested in response to some 
disappointment around outcomes of previous 
Task Groups, delays in setting up Task Groups)

Executive Manager 
Governance – Mark Stinson

More involvement with the CIP Team and 
relevant services on a topic by topic basis.

Cost of running the South Holland Centre Programme Delivery 
Manager – Jenny Stephens

This is already part of the Growth and 
Commercialisation Programme, and a 
review is underway.  Progress will be 
reported back to the Panel in due course.

Report to be provided to the 
Panel, which will be kept 
updated in a similar way to 
the Priory Road project – 
member briefings etc.

P
age 48



5

ISSUES RAISED BY PANEL CIP (CORPORATE 
IMPROVEMENT) 
LEAD/SERVICE HEAD

STATUS NEXT STEPS/PRIORITY FOR 
CONSIDERATION

What areas of risk exist within Public Services 
for cost shunting, and how may this be avoided?

Executive Director 
Commercialisation – 
Christine Marshall

To be programmed into a future PMP 
meeting

Report to be presented to 
the Committee – Panel to 
consider which meeting.

What was LCC’s policy with regard to the filling 
of pot holes?  Money was currently being 
wasted on an ineffective policy.

Place Manager – Paul 
Jackson

https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/transport-
and-roads/highways-
maintenance/potholes/36679.article

Link to LCC website has 
been attached.
Panel should consider 
whether it wishes to invite a 
representative from LCC 
Highways to a future 
meeting to provide further 
information, if required.

Streetscene – how is this undertaken and 
managed?

Environmental Services 
Manager – Emily Spicer

To be programmed into a future PMP 
meeting.

Report to be presented to 
the Committee – Panel to 
consider which meeting.
The Environmental Services 
Manager can provide the 
Panel with a briefing on this 
issue, alongside a briefing 
on fly tipping (as detailed 
above), if required. She can 
attend the meeting on 6 
February 2018.

P
age 49

https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/transport-and-roads/highways-maintenance/potholes/36679.article
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/transport-and-roads/highways-maintenance/potholes/36679.article
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/transport-and-roads/highways-maintenance/potholes/36679.article


6

ISSUES RAISED BY PANEL CIP (CORPORATE 
IMPROVEMENT) 
LEAD/SERVICE HEAD

STATUS NEXT STEPS/PRIORITY FOR 
CONSIDERATION

Enforcement (planning/building control/littering 
etc) – a report was requested in six months time 
addressing how the various types of 
enforcement (e.g. planning/building 
control/littering) would be dealt with in the 
future, following the re-organisation taking 
place throughout the Authority.  

Place Manager - Paul 
Jackson

The Panel agreed at its meeting on 4 July 
that a report be produced in six months 
time.  This has been added to the meeting 
on 6 February 2017

Local Council Tax Support Scheme – had this 
saved the money that was intended and had 
local residents been affected by the changes

Head of Service, Revenues 
and Benefits – Sharon 
Hammond

To be programmed into a future PMP 
meeting.

Report to be presented to 
the Committee – Panel to 
consider which meeting.

How might dual-hatted members contribute 
most effectively to cooperative working across 
both tiers of government (District and County).

Executive Director 
Commercialisation – 
Christine Marshall

To discuss.

Are the financial savings predicted from various 
reorganisations being delivered?

CIP Team - Corporate 
Improvement and 
Performance Manager, 
Greg Pearson
In conjunction with 
relevant service areas.

A report will be brought to the Panel once 
all reviews as part of the Moving Forward 
programme are complete.
The CIP Team will be working on the 
delivery of the programme.

To be programme into the 
Work Programme 

P
age 50



7

Briefing note to Performance Monitoring Panel on how Economic Development is undertaken and promoted within South 
Holland District Council

Structure

The current Economic Development (Inward Investment) service at South Holland is a small department currently consisting of an 
Acting Inward Investment Manager and an Economic Development Officer. There is a dormant Senior Economic Development 
Officer post vacated by the Acting Inward Investment Manager since January 2016.

Achievements to 2015

Historically, the service has worked to the Economic Development Strategy 2010 – 2015 which stated as its priorities:

 To help create an environment in which new businesses can start and existing businesses can grow.
 To generate a high quality of life so that people will want to both live and work in the district
 To work with partners to tackle issues holding back economic growth and to minimise the impact of the recession.

During this period, the department successfully bid for more than a £1million of Regional Development Agency funding to buy land 
and build 6 industrial units at Crease Drove Crowland. It bid for money for the construction of the Red Lion Quarter, and worked 
with a private developer to put the case together for a potential Road rail Hub. The service helped to bid for funding for the Wash 
Fens RDPE project and still has a presence today on the approval panel.

In 2013 we bid for and were awarded European Regional Development Funding to deliver a £1m capital grant scheme called 
Grants4growth which ran successfully until the end of 2015 working across the East Midlands region, this project supported 32 
businesses in South Holland with grants totalling £238,726.

2015 - 2019

The South Holland District Council Corporate Plan 2015 – 2019 states as one of its priorities:

P
age 51



8

To encourage the local economy to be vibrant with continued growth.

Our key objectives activities and actions working to this priority to help deliver the Corporate Plan are:

CA19 Build strong working relationships with partners across sectors to draw in funding and resources to the district

We work with a number of businesses of all types in South Holland, helping them to seek out funding streams, facilitating 
connection with relevant partners and stakeholders who can address whatever issues the company may have. This kind of work 
often involves County Council, the Greater Lincolnshire and Greater Cambridgeshire, Greater Peterborough Local Enterprise 
Partnerships and their Growth Hubs, FE and HE providers, Job Centre Plus, Highways, and other departments within SHDC, in 
particular Development Control, Strategic Planning, and the Environmental Health Team.

On a larger scale promoting the Food Enterprise Zone at Holbeach is a key action for the team. We initially secured a £34K 
Feasibility Grant from GL LEP which enabled us to undertake studies to take forward the Holbeach FEZ. This has then provided the 
evidence base, so that working together with Lincolnshire County Council over £3m has been secured from the Greater 
Lincolnshire LEP Growth Fund to put in the infrastructure needed to enable development of the Food Enterprise Zone (FEZ) at 
Holbeach. This will include the University of Lincoln Holbeach Campus building a new facility on site as the anchor tenant, at the 
same time bringing much needed improvements to the A17 Peppermint Junction and opening up adjacent land for housing 
development.

We are working to promote and market the site to high tech businesses in the Agrifood sector. This involves a close working 
relationship with National Centre for Food Manufacturing who are leaders in translational research and its implementation for the 
food industry particularly in automation and robotics, food safety and food waste.

CA20 Build on key sector strengths of South Holland to retain and attract business investment.

We interact with businesses not only by individual visits, but also using Social Media to keep them informed of various important 
announcements, by attendance at local networking events and meetings (Chamber of Commerce for example) and by running a 
quarterly Business Breakfast event.

P
age 52



9

The Business Breakfasts were born from the Councils Open for Business agenda, and with the first one being held in October 
2015. They are attended by CEO and Director level people representing many of the most ‘critical’ businesses in the district, giving 
them the opportunity to interact with senior Council officers and members in a relaxed but business-like atmosphere. These 
meetings allow the Council to discuss with the decision makers within those businesses, subjects that they highlight as important to 
them, covering subjects such as skills, place marketing, training provision, recruitment and infrastructure. Because some of the 
issues, skills and lack of promotion of the main sectors of our economy in particular, have become a reoccurring theme, we now 
invite representatives from Schools and Further/Higher Education providers to the breakfasts to speak directly to businesses in 
order to progress the skills agenda. It allows us to understand emerging issues that we may be able to have some influence over, 
to get feedback that we can use for both the Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise Partnership and the Greater Cambridge Greater 
Peterborough Local Enterprise Partnerships Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) refreshes, and Action Plans.

The Business Breakfasts have given the Council credibility within the local business community, with a number of attendees 
coming forward to form a subgroup specifically to work with the ED department and the Skills service on the issues raised by the 
wider group.

CA21 Grow and encourage local opportunities and activities for businesses in the district

Skills

This skills work is part of a wider theme that we are discussing with both LEP’s and working with them to bring forward some 
defined actions. We are currently looking at how the opportunity for a career in the agrifood sector is presented to students by the 
schools, and are working with the GCGPLEP Skills Service to engage with schools and businesses to highlight the many and 
varied career paths available within that sector and others.

We work with Nottingham Business Venture to facilitate workshops for pre start and start-up businesses.

We have successfully organised and run 8 jobs fairs in partnership with Job Centre Plus, this has proved so popular in helping 
businesses to recruit staff that some now book their stand a year in advance to ensure a place.

P
age 53



10

Grants4growth

During late 2015 and early 2016, we bid for and in October 2016 were awarded by DCLG, the contract to deliver the next phase of 
Grants4growth, this time with £1.36m capital grant money. Delivery is across the Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise area 
including North and North East Lincolnshire under the banner of the Greater Lincolnshire Growth Hub. After reassembling the 
delivery team, we started practical delivery of the contract at the end of March 2017, and to date, (the end of August 2017), are 
delivering on profile, with 7 grants already offered to South Holland businesses worth £90,046. The project has until the end of June 
2019 to deliver the contracted outputs and we have this week heard from DCLG in Nottingham that we are one of the few projects 
in the East Midlands that are performing to profile. The team currently consists of a contracted Project Manager funded 100% by 
the project, an Engagement and Financial Claims Coordinator also funded 100% by the project, 70% of the Economic Development 
Officers time is charged to the project and 20% of the Acting Inward Investment Manager likewise.

Grants4growth is another example of a benefit to the local economy instigated by the Economic Development Department and 
South Holland District Council.

We are working closely with Springfield’s Retail Outlet to bring their expansion plans forward, and to work with them in promoting 
the town centre and the wider district as a place to visit. Springfield’s also have an important role to play in helping to support the 
case for improved rail services and other strategic consultations. 

CA22 Develop a clear “open for business” agenda 

Further work carried out by the Economic Development Department as a direct result of the Open for Business agenda involves 
taking the lead on a ‘one Council approach’ when working with businesses and Inward Investment opportunities, involving, 
Development Control, Strategic Planning, the Environmental Health team and Community Development.

Intelligence is shared between key staff in these departments to identify and record any prospects or problems that emerge during 
the course of our work, and then ensuring that communication with that business is done through one key account holder, usually 
ED, so that the business is not pushed from one department to another, they have one person to communicate with.

CA24 Continue to work with partners to ensure the District is represented and influencing any emerging proposals

P
age 54



11

By working with both Greater Lincolnshire and Greater Cambridgeshire, Greater Cambridgeshire LEP’s, we can help to shape 
strategies such as their Strategic Economic Plans and Skills Strategies, and provide Inward Investment information to feed into the 
Midlands Engine when required by supplying the evidence base they need, as well as feeding into the wider Government Industrial 
Strategy for example. We have worked with the GLLEP/LCC on their recently commissioned sites and utility study, hotel study, and 
are working with the County Council on a response to the East Midlands Rail Franchise Consultation.

CA23 Support Spalding and Market Towns in the district to be vibrant and meet the needs of their communities

In 2016, we launched a mobile phone app called Townapps which helps to promote the retail and leisure offers in all of South 
Hollands towns. 

The department works with the business organisations in Spalding and this includes organising the putting up and taking down of 
Spalding Christmas lights each year, and is seen as the first port of call for most business/economy related enquiries.

We run a twitter and Facebook account to help promote the Councils approach to Economic Development, as well as using it to 
disseminate information of use to the local businesses and retailers.

CA18 Work with our partners to ensure that the technological infrastructure is available accessible and meets the needs of our 
communities and business.

We have regular liaison with the Broadband team at the County Council to ensure that the needs of South Holland are understood 
and that the programme is delivered successfully.

Submission of an expression of interest from Lincolnshire for the Local Full Fibre Network Programme is supported by South 
Holland and if successful will be part of future work. 

Moving Forward

The above activities will continue but areas of particular focus will be:

P
age 55



12

Holbeach FEZ

Developing a stronger proposition that meets market demand to support our marketing efforts. This is likely to involve working with 
private sector investor/construction partners to ensure there is a full range of lease and purchase options on the Food Enterprise 
Zone. We will examine what incentives may be required. We are helping develop a FEZ website for the 3 Greater Lincolnshire 
FEZs. And this will form part of developing the ongoing marketing strategy and materials with LCC. Active promotion and targeted 
engagement with industry will be vital if the aspirations of Holbeach attracting more R & D and technological elements of the food 
industry are to be realised. In parallel there will be work by Lincolnshire County Council and our delivery team to achieve the 
physical development of the site.

Skills

The Skills service are now active in South Holland funded by GCGP and as described above are working with schools to develop 
their careers education and increase engagement with businesses. We will supportAn aspiration of the Business Breakfast’s has 
been an event to promote the opportunities in South Holland and help reshape people’s perceptions of our industries particularly 
food. The image is of work in the fields and on the line whereas there are major opportunities in engineering, science, IT, HR, 
finance etc. Delivering such an event in partnership with the Skills Service in the first quarter 2018 will be discussed at our Business 
Breakfast in October 2017. 

Inward Investment

Ensuring South Holland has the right mix of available sites and buildings to attract Inward Investment is a key element for the 
ongoing success of our economy. The ED department will be working with owners sites in addition to the FEZ to help identify 
issues that may be preventing take up and facilitate solutions. 

We will be involved in the emerging Phase 2 of the Crease Drove Development looking to provide additional industrial units ion 
Crowland.

We will continue to seek to raise South Holland’s profile with Inward Investment staff in key agencies.   

P
age 56


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5a) Response of the Cabinet to the Final Report of the Re-Letting of Void Properties Task Group
	7 Key Decision Plan
	9 Quarter 1 2017-18 Performance Overview Report
	Appendix 1 for Quarter 1 2017-18 Performance Overview Report

	10 Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C


